
RFP 2017-0019 Actuarial Auditor 

Question and Answer Addendum 

Question cut off 5/22/17 @ 12pm 

The Request for Proposal (RFP) is modified as set forth in this Addendum. The original RFP 

Documents and any previously issued addenda remain in full force and effect, except as 

modified by this Addendum, which is hereby made part of the RFP. Respondent shall take this 

Addendum into consideration when preparing and submitting its Proposal. 

1.  Currently, our firm provides annual actuarial consulting services to another Pittsburgh 

agency, including financial disclosure items required to be reported in the City’s overall balance 

sheet.  Are we able to bid on this opportunity or would we be disqualified due to that 

relationship? 

Answer:  Yes, your company can provide a proposal response. 

 2. Since May 29th is Memorial Day and we are closed, and I thought the City was closed on 

that day, as well, are you giving people an extra day, or would you like RFP’s delivered on 

Friday, May 26, 2017? 

Answer: Yes, the proposal submission deadline will be extended to May 30, 2017.  

3. The RFP shows the proposal submission date to be Monday, May 29th, which is Memorial 

Day.  Given this is a holiday, will submissions be accepted on Tuesday, May 30th? 

Answer: See response to question #2, 

4. What were the actuarial valuation fees charged for the January 1, 2015 valuations (separately 

for each plan)?  Did these fees include any out-of-scope fees?  If so, please provide the 

base valuation fees separately from the out-of-scope fees and provide an explanation for 

what was out-of-scope. 

Answer:  This is subject to the City's Right-to-Know Policy.  Right-to-Know 

requests can be submitted to the following: 

Celia Behrend Liss 
Open Records Officer 
313 City-County Building 
414 Grant Street 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 
P: 412-255-2015 
F: 412-255-2285 
openrecords@pittsburghpa.gov 

 

mailto:openrecords@pittsburghpa.gov


5. Have there been any changes to the benefit provisions, actuarial assumptions or methods 

subsequent to the release of the January 1, 2015 valuation reports?  If so, are those 

changes expected to be addressed in our audit review or does the RFP strictly cover what 

was valued in the 2015 actuarial valuations? 

Answer: The assumed interest rate was reduced this year, but the review strictly 

covers the 2015 Actuarial Valuations. 

6. Is a census data review part of the full scope audit? 

Answer: No. 

a. Will the firm you select be provided with the census data files the City provided to 

the actuary and the firm is expected to perform its own analyses and compare its 

“final” data files to those final data files actually used by the actuary? 

Answer: No. 

b. Or will the firm just be provided with the final census files used by the actuary? 

Answer: Yes. 

7. My firm has limited experience with performing full-scope actuarial audits, but the firm’s 

credentialed actuaries have the relevant experience as they performed full-scope actuarial 

audits with their former employers.  Will the City accept references from those retirement 

systems who may comment on their experience with the lead actuary rather than the firm? 

Answer: Yes. 

8. What actuarial valuation software does the current actuary use?  We ask since different 

systems can produce different results even if the same data, assumptions, methods and 

provisions are valued. 

Answer: The City does not know what valuation software the current actuary uses. 

9. Who is the current contractor? 

Answer: The current actuary is Mockenhaupt Benefits Group. 

10. How long has the current contractor performed the services? 

Answer: 20 years 

11. Is the current service provider eligible to participate in this RFP process? 

Answer: No. 



12. Why are these services listed in the RFP out to bid? Are they due to the expiration of the 

current contract or for other reasons? 

Answer: The City is striving to perform due diligence in monitoring the quality of 

actuarial services that it receives. 

13. How long is the contract term for the current RFP? 

Answer: The contract term will be for one year, or until completion of the 

requested work. 

14. Was the work required in prior years similar to that described in the current RFP? Are there 

any improvements, or additional services that the City is seeking?  

Answer:  The City has never had an actuarial audit performed. 

15. In order to assist us in gaining a clear understanding of the scope of work, can you provide 

the amount of the total level of effort (hours of work) and fees paid to the current contractor 

in 2015 and 2016?  

Answer: This is subject to the City's Right-to-Know Policy.  Right-to-Know 

requests can be submitted to the following: 

Celia Behrend Liss 
Open Records Officer 
313 City-County Building 
414 Grant Street 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 
P: 412-255-2015 
F: 412-255-2285 
openrecords@pittsburghpa.gov 

a. In particular, if available, please provide the separate fees / hours of work for different 

services included in the current vendor’s contract (for example, level one actuarial 

auditing, level two actuarial auditing, level three actuarial auditing, etc.).   

Answer: Same as above. 

16. Can you provide a copy of recent auditing reports for 2015 and 2016? 

Answer: The City has never had an actuarial audit performed. 

17. What type and format of data is typically provided to the contractor for review? And when is 

the data typically provided to the contractor for review?  

Answer: The type and format of data provided will depend on the level of review 

selected, but will be agreed upon during the contracting process. 
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18. Can you disclose the weights of the different evaluation criteria listed on page 17, 9.2 

Criteria? 

Answer: The evaluation criteria will be evaluated equally. 

19. How many meetings at the client site are required per year in the RFP? Please provide us 

with the address where those meetings will take place.   

Answer: There will be a minimum of two meetings in the City-County Building, 414 

Grant Street, Pittsburgh, PA 15219.  

20. Is there a MBE/WBE participating in the current contract? 

Answer: No. 

a. If yes, can you provide the name, a brief description of their services, and the dollar 

amount of their annual fee? 

Answer: N/A 

21. Who is the City’s current actuary? 

Answer: Mockenhaupt Benefits Group 

22. Appendix B – MWDBE and Veteran-Owned Solicitation and Commitment Form, page 3 

a.  Data typed in the table on the top is automatically copied into the table at the bottom, 

is this form designed to be so or the two tables should include different companies’ 

information? 

Answer: The two tables should include different companies. This form can 

be copied as needed for however many vendors are contacted. 

b. Why “Quote Received” and “Commitment made” cannot be chosen as Yes at the 

same time? 

Answer: Functionality of the document will be looked into further. Please 

complete the application to the best of your abilities for a response by 

filling out the application and leaving those sections blank, print the 

document, and then complete by checking the boxes that apply.  

23. Please confirm the due date is 5/30/2017 at 3:00 as shown on website rather than 

5/29/2017 at 3:00 as indicated on the RFP document 

Answer: Yes, the due date is 5/30/17 at 3:00pm. 



24. When was the last audit performed? What was the scope of that audit? Is a copy of the audit 

report available? 

Answer: The City has never had an actuarial audit performed. 

25. When was the last actuarial experience study performed? Is a copy of that report available? 

Answer: The last experience study was as of 1/1/13.  It is available at 

www.pittsburghpa.gov/pension. 

26. What is the budget for the requested audit? 

Answer: There is no set budget for the requested audit. 

27. Why has the City decided to pursue actuarial audit services?  

Answer: The City is striving to perform due diligence in monitoring the quality of 

actuarial services that it receives. 

28. How often does the City perform an actuarial audit? 

Answer: The City has never had an actuarial audit performed. 

29. The City is soliciting cost estimates for three possible levels of audit services. At what level 

was the previous actuarial audit performed and why?  Is the City leaning toward a different 

level of audit this time?  If so, which level is being contemplated?  

Answer: The level of audit chosen will depend on the cost/benefit of audit. 

30. Which firm performed the previous actuarial audit and what was the price for the level of 

audit service selected? 

Answer: The City has never had an actuarial audit performed. 

31. Has the City set a budget to perform the services of the actuarial audit?  If so, what has the 

City budgeted? 

Answer: There is no set budget for the requested audit. 

32. Can the report or relevant communication on the results of the previous audit be shared?  If 

so, please share. 

Answer: The City has never had an actuarial audit performed. 

 33. When was the last experience study performed? Please share the latest experience study 

report. 
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Answer: The last experience study was as of 1/1/13.  It is available at 

www.pittsburghpa.gov/pension. 

  

34. How long has the current actuary been providing services to the City?  

Answer: 20 years 

 35. What is the desired timing of the completion of the audit work and presentation to the 

CMPTF?  

Answer: The timing will depend on the level of audit chosen, but all work should 

be completed within one year of contract approval. 

 36. The debarment clause indicates that the selected firm will be prohibited from bidding on any 

actuarial work for the City for subsequent two (2) years. Please describe other actuarial 

services for which the City has utilized a firm other than the incumbent actuary. 

Answer: The City has historically utilized the same actuary for other actuarial 

services that it uses for performing the actuarial valuations.  

37. Would the City accept bidders’ proposal that includes certain deviations from standard 

Professional Services Agreement, such as addition of mutually acceptable limitation of 

liability language? 

Answer: Any deviations from the City's standard contract language would have to 

be approved by the City Law Department.  

38. Will the selected actuarial auditor be required to audit both funding and accounting results of 

the current actuary for each of the City’s three defined benefit plans? 

Answer: The selected actuary will be reviewing the Actuarial Valuation Reports 

only for the three pension plans, under one of the three levels described in the 

RFP. 

39. Deadline as specified on the City’s web site is 3 PM on May 30, 2017.  Deadline as 

specified in hard copy of RFP we obtained is 3 PM on Memorial Day. Please indicate which 

applies.  If Memorial Day applies, please confirm that you will still be accepting submissions 

(by U.S. mail or commercial delivery service) that arrive before 3 PM on this day.  If not, will 

submissions be accepted on either Saturday or Sunday of Memorial Day weekend? 

Answer: The deadline has been changed to May 30, 2017 due to the Memorial Day 

holiday. 

40. When was the most recent experience study performed for the plans, if any? 
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Answer: The last experience study was as of 1/1/13. 

a. If so, can you please provide it to us? 

Answer: It's available at www.pittsburghpa.gov/pension. 

40. When was the most recent actuarial audit performed for the plans? 

Answer: The City has never had an actuarial audit performed. 

a. If an audit was previously performed, what level of audit did the City choose at that 

time? 

Answer: N/A 
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